ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
July 14, 2006
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssha
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Vic Kohring

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Bettye Davis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

WORKI NG GROUP: " USI NG HEALTH CARE DOLLARS W SELY"
- HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REGQ STER

STEPHANI E Bl RCH

Wonren and Children, Family Health

Di vi sion of Public Health

Department of Health & Social Services (HESS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in the discussion during the
wor k group on using health care dollars w sely.

PATRI CI A A. CARR, Health Program Manager |V
Heal t h Pl anning & Systens Devel opnent

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS)
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- July 14, 2006



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in the discussion during the
wor k group on using health care dollars w sely.

KARLEEN K. JACKSON, Ph.D., Comm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in the discussion during the
wor k group on using health care dollars w sely.

JERRY FULLER, Project Director

O fice of Program Review

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in the discussion during the
wor k group on using health care dollars w sely.

DENNI S DeW TT, Special Staff Assistant

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in the discussion during the
wor k group on using health care dollars w sely.

PAULYN SWANSQN, St af f

to Representative M ke Hawker

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Took part in the work group discussion on
using health care dollars wisely, on behalf of the House Fi nance
Subcomm ttee on Health and Social Services, which is chaired by
Represent ati ve Hawker.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 8:05:30 AM
Representatives Gardner and WIson were present at the call to
order. Representative Cissna arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

WORKI NG GROUP:

"USI NG HEALTH CARE DOLLARS W SELY"

8: 05: 57 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- July 14, 2006



CHAI R W LSON announced that the only order of business was the
wor k group session to address using health care dollars w sely.

CHAI R W LSON asked the participants to introduce thensel ves.
8. 08: 06 AM

STEPHANI E BI RCH, Wnen and Children, Famly Health, D vision of
Public Health, Departnent of Health & Social Services, told the
group that her area of focus was birth outcones. She nentioned
the Alaska Maternal and Child Health (MCH) data book, which is
witten on the topic of birth defects. She said she would
conpile the major points for the group.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON stated her intent that the work group
choose topics for its future neetings.

8:10: 21 AM

PATRICIA A CARR, Health Program Manager 1V, Health Planning &
Systens Devel opnent, Ofice of the Comm ssioner, Departnent of
Health & Social Services (DHSS), directed attention to a handout
she provided entitled, "Al aska State Health Plans and Speci al
Reports.”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said the group can pick focus subjects
from the handout.

8:11:21 AM

KARLEEN K. JACKSON, Ph.D., Comm ssioner, Departnent of Health
and Social Services (DHSS), directed attention to page 7 of the
af orenmenti oned handout and noted there is a web site link listed
under the heading of "Public Health - Center for Health Data and
Statistics.” The web site covers various topics.

8:12: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said her presentation regarding a "road
show' woul d be forthcom ng.

8:13: 23 AM
JERRY FULLER, Project Director, Ofice of Program Review, Ofice
of the Conm ssioner, Departnent of Health & Social Services

(DHSS), said he had been asked to pull together studies related
to long-term[health] care. He held up a stack of papers dating

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- July 14, 2006



from 1996 to present, all of which he said point to the sane

pr obl em He explained, "W've got a problem comng with the
i ncreasing nunber of aged and disabled, and we need to do
something about it." He said it is a lot of information and he

did not nmake copies for everyone.
8:14: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked to see the copies to figure out what
i nfornmati on she needs.

8:15:25 AM

CHAIR WLSON stated the need to prioritize goals, and she held a
di scussion regarding the order of the topics on a handout
entitled, "June 2006 Health Priorities Meeting."

8:18:11 AM

M5. CARR described the priorities handout as a list conpiled
t hrough brainstormng; she said it holds ideas put forward that
now need to be considered by the entire group.

8:20: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA, regarding inproving birth outcones, said
she does get the sanme feedback when in Juneau that she receives
when she is hone talking to people on the street, and that
concerns her.

8:21:34 AM

COWM SSI ONER  JACKSON noted that she serves on the executive
commttee for Commonweal th North Round Table on Heal thcare. She
said the round table discussion was related to what is being
done and can be done in health care. She nentioned repetition
in talking about matters, reports that just sit on the shelf,
and trying to connect who's doi ng what.

8:23:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA cl arified that she is tal king about "holes
that are occurring ... in out-of-the way places where people
aren't |ooking at that specific population.” She said going

door to door is the best nethod she's found to find out the
i ssues.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- July 14, 2006



8:25:04 AM

CHAIR WLSON directed attention back to the priorities list and
asked the group to consider what can be addressed now.

The commttee took an at-ease from 8:28:15 AMto 8:31:18 AM to
review the |ist.

8:31:19 AM

CHAIR WLSON said she noticed several issues on the list related
to comunities, as well as issues regarding the need for the
heal th comi ssi on to change as t he | egi sl ature and
adm ni stration each change.

8:31:49 AM

M5. CARR highlighted the issue of wvertical and horizontal
conmuni cation, and she noted related priority itens. Regar di ng
working with the information available, she nentioned the
process of synthesis and comruni cation, and the creation of the
process itself.

8:33:51 AM

MR. FULLER tal ked about |ow and no-cost options, when to nove a
process forward, and fostering the processes for sustainability
by educating everyone.

8:38:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER, in response to a comrent by Chair
W son, said she thinks |legislators need to focus on specialties
and brief thenselves on issues that aren't their specialty by
tal king to people who are know edgeabl e in those ot her subjects.

8:39:15 AM

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON said she knows the departnent can't force
people to cone listen to the issues, but it is difficult to
encapsulate in a short l|egislative presentation what has been
di scussed over a long period of time during many neetings. She
asked for suggestions to address that issue.

8:40: 38 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- July 14, 2006



DENNI S DeW TT, Special Staff Assistant, Ofice of the Governor
suggested an overview to find out what interests people and to
give them a better idea of what the issues are. He said there
is a need to outline a point of focus. He added, "If you have
no i dea where you're going, any road will get you there."

8:44: 05 AM

CHAI R W LSON suggested starting on the |ast page of the handout,
which |ists action steps.

8:44:28 AM

MR, FULLER said the bottomIline shows that the financial aspects
of Medicaid will not decrease; they wll only conpound. He
offered further details. He said he would like the |egislature
to give the departnment the permssion to find ways to becone
nore efficient.

8:46: 55 AM

CHAIR WLSON suggested another way to keep costs down is by
using tried and true nmethods of prevention.

8:47:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked to hear individually what each
person took away from the [previously nentioned June 2006 Health
Priorities Meeting] in Denver.

8:48: 52 AM

M5. CARR indicated that the visual aides [fromthat neeting] are
avail able and nmay be helpful to view, and she offered to get a
copy for the commttee.

8:49:19 AM

MR. FULLER, regarding the expansion of health care benefits,
suggested figuring out if it nmakes sense to put together a
"“prevention package," rather than a "sick package."

8:50: 22 AM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, Alaska State Legislature, said she would

like the departnment to present to the legislature - or at |east
to a conmttee within the legislature dealing with the issue of

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- July 14, 2006



health - what it would like to pronote, including how rmuch noney
is needed, why it is necessary, and how the decisions were nade,
and she expressed her wish to see that done prior to the
| egi sl ature nmeeting again in Juneau.

8:52:41 AM

M5. BIRCH listed four major thenes related to using health care
dol l ars W sel y: conmmuni cati on wth comruni ti es, t he
| egi sl ature, and the departnent; prevention, including the areas
of birth and contraception, chronic disease, and nental health

personal responsibility; and access. She agreed with Senator
Davis that the list is too large to tackle, and she suggested
that the group could choose to work on one of the thenes, while
assigning other interested parties to investigate the other
t henes.

8:55: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said what these issues cone down to is
nmoney and getting ideas out to |egislators. She said having
m ssions and neasures is hel pful. She tal ked about "speaking
t he | anguage of people who don't volunteer to come to health-
related things." She nentioned |obbying efforts and repeated
nmessages from the health care industry, saying that witten
comuni cations will be ignored by all but the nost comm tted.
8:57.:46 AM

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON said the concept she brought back from the
meeting in Denver was that it would be useful to be able to
convey to people that "just because it's not in the budget as a
heal thcare access cost, doesn't nmean it's not inportant to
heal th. " She revealed that Senator Lisa Mrkowski, who has
recently been appointed to a federal commttee considering
prevention efforts related to health care, told her that she
woul d keep her up to date on any new ideas that are fornmed. She
menti oned a book by Richard Lamm [former governor of Col orado],
in which there is a chart that shows why the U S. federal health
care system is broken. She said she wants to share this
information in talking with legislators, to help them see the
bi gger picture. She remarked that people don't tend to respond,
unl ess they can see that an issue is in crisis.

8:59: 56 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- July 14, 2006



PAULYN SWANSQN, Staff to Representative M ke Hawker, Al aska
State Legislature, on behalf of the House Finance Subconmttee
on Heal t h and Soci al Servi ces, whi ch IS chaired by
Representative Hawker, told the group what she l|earned at the
nmeeting in Denver, including issues related to the extra cost in
health care for |ow birth-weight babies, as conpared to healthy
babi es.

9:00: 41 AM

CHAIR WLSON listed the follow ng topics: communi cati ons, cost
savi ngs, prevention, personal responsibility, and access.

9:01: 16 AM

M5. CARR highlighted the follow ng issues: increasing access to
care, looking at issues affecting people' s choices, and birth
out cones. She stated that she thinks those issues are
"groundi ng. "

9:02: 28 AM

CHAIR WLSON |isted sustainability as the overall biggest issue.
She suggested that birth outcomes can be addressed under the
headi ng of prevention.

9:04: 37 AM

MR. FULLER said long-term care could be addressed under the
headi ng of sustainability.

9:05:10 AM

SENATOR DAVIS, regarding Medicaid, told M. Fuller that the
| egi sl ature needs recommendations from the division to be

apprised well ahead of session whether cuts will need to be nmade
or funds will be requested.
9:06: 16 AM

VR. FULLER agreed that the division needs to give the
| egi sl ature what information it can. He explained that although
the division has a good idea of what the Deficit Reduction Act
provisions are, it doesn't know what the federal actions based
on President CGeorge W Bush's FY 07 budget w Il be. He offered
further details. He said Senator Lisa Miurkowski is aware of the
situation and supports the division's position that it would

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- July 14, 2006



like the admnistration to pay attention to Congress. He
of fered further details.

9:08: 46 AM

CHAIR WLSON said six years ago the whole state budget was the
anount that just the Medicaid budget is now.

9:09: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said, "It was a conscious effort to nobve
things to that ... funding source.” She said she would like to
see an analysis to determine whether that was the w sest nove
for the | ong-term perspective.

9:09: 37 AM

SENATOR DAVI S nentioned a 2001 Medicaid waiver task force. She
asked if the outcone of that task force has yet reached the
departnment. She nentioned the Key Canpai gn.

9:11: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA said there has been a change to the senior
and disability waiver.

9:11: 37 AM

M5. SWANSON confirned that there is a report addressing a waiver
and wait list, which she said she woul d nake avail abl e.

9:11:56 AM

CHAIR WLSON asked what subjects should be put under the heading
of cost containnment and savings. She suggested Medicaid and
Medi car e

9:12: 24 AM

M5. CARR suggested prevention results in cost saving.

CHAIR WLSON recomended dealing with prevention on its own,
because there is so nuch related to it.

9:12: 53 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- July 14, 2006



MR. DeW TT suggested two reasons to focus on prevention are for
quality of 1life or for cost containnent, and each issue is
approached differently. He said he doesn't think the group has
deci ded what its focus is yet.

CHAIR W LSON and REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER si nul taneously said the

focus is on both; quality of |ife and cost containnent are not
separ abl e.
9:14: 16 AM
MR DeWTT stated his disagreenent. He explained that the
priorities will change based upon whether the goal is lifestyle

or cost contai nnent.
9:14: 28 AM

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON said she thinks M. DeWtt has nade a good
point. She tal ked about health versus health care, and she said
preventative efforts are key to health care access and health
care cost containnent.

9:15: 01 AM

CHAIR WLSON said cutting prograns in order to save noney wl |
result in spending nore noney in the long run. She enphasi zed
the inportance of prevention. She said the state cannot cover

everything, so it nust decide where to place its efforts.
9:16: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA said she has worked on and off within the
mental health conmmunity since 1963, and she stated that it is
al nost inpossible to renove behavioral health - the choices
peopl e make - from physical health. She said the legislature
hears the nost from | obbyists who represent "the expensive part
of health care,” not the "cheap part.” Health has becone
comercialized, she explained, and prevention doesn't nake
noney, SO no one is going to conme to the |egislature and | obby
for it.

9:18:38 AM
CHAIR WLSON responded that there actually were |obbyists for

prevention for the first tine this year: the Boys and Grls
Cl ub, and the Al aska School Board Associ ati on.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- July 14, 2006



9:19:15 AM

SENATOR DAVI S said she wants to know if the departnent is doing
anything to get the message of prevention out to the public.
She said children take notice of information and pass it along
to their parents. She opined that if the state educates peopl e,
t hose people will be nore concerned about their personal health,
and the state will save noney as a result.

9:20: 34 AM

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON proffered that one exanple of what Senator
Davis is talking about has been the tobacco cessation efforts.
She said many parents stopped snoking because children were
educated through the school system and passed the nessage on to
their parents that "snoking kills you."

9:20: 49 AM

MR. FULLER, in response to a question from Chair WIson, said a
maj or portion of the budget - probably 40 percent - is spent on
el der care, long-termcare, and nursing hones.

MR. FULLER said the next biggest areas of expense are probably
hospital and pharmacy. He said the inflation on drugs grows
exponentially, and nothing has been in place to restrain that
growh. He said when drug rebates were offered years ago givVing
states a certain percentage back, "It took the drug
manuf acturers maybe nine nonths to inflate their prices enough
to make up the difference.”

9:22:36 AM

CHAIR WLSON listed the followng subcategories under cost
cont ai nnment : | ong-term care, drugs, and hospitalization. She
indicated that increasing [funds for] prevention may decrease
t he expenses under cost contai nment.

9:23: 46 AM

MR. FULLER said Al aska has quite a good long-term care systemin
regard to the nursing hone proportion conpared to "the total."

However, he posited that the system has grown "topsy-turvy." He
stated, "W don't have a true system we' ve got pieces that

don't nesh together very well." He indicated that there is a
definition of assisted living that covers one person in a

private home to the Al aska Pioneer Home. He said he thinks the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- July 14, 2006



state could get a price suppression by reconfiguring its current
system He concluded, "... It's not going to give you [a] $10-
mllion savings, but it wll slow the growh so that when we get
out there to 2025, maybe that cost will not be $2 billion, but
$1.5 billion, or whatever."

CHAIR WLSON asked if the changes that are needed are statutory
or regul atory.

MR. FULLER surm sed the changes would be nostly regulatory, wth
political support to make the changes.

CHAIR WLSON asked M. Fuller to prepare his thoughts into a
presentation for the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Comrittee, so that the conmittee can make sonme hel pfu
suggestions "somewhere along the line."

9:25:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA of fered her understanding that a |ong-term
care study that addresses these issues was supposed to be
avai | abl e 1 ong ago.

MR. FULLER said he thinks the latest date of release is slated
for 20 July 2006

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said the commttee should incorporate the
recommendations that will be in that study.

MR. FULLER said he will certainly incorporate the study in the
presentation that Chair WIson requested, while he indicated
that other sources for recommendations wll also be used. He
stated that an inportant aspect of long-termcare that is sel dom
tal ked about is that the biggest provider of long-term health
care is famly nenbers, and he recommended finding ways to
support that.

M5. CISSNA said she doesn't want to jeopardize that source of
| ong-term care, and she tal ked about the burnout of caregivers.

CHAIR WLSON said, "So, providing them respite ... is in the
long run a cost savings."

MR. FULLER responded, "It can be, as long as the state is able
to manage that, so it doesn't becone babysitting for grandma so
that [they] can all take off." He indicated that there needs to
be a balance between the famly doing as nmuch as it can and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- July 14, 2006



having the state, community, or faith-based group help them
al ong.

9:28:18 AM

CHAI R WLSON suggested that the comnmttee should invite soneone
from the faith-based community to address these issues and |et
the conm ttee know what kind of help is avail able.

COWM SSI ONER  JACKSON noted that the Ofice of Faith-based &
Community Initiatives is now in the Departnment of Health and
Soci al Ser vi ces, and Stephanie \Weeler is the executive
director.

CHAI R W LSON reconmended having a faith-based group available in
every community in the state.

9:29: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA suggested that the committee not limt the
di scussion to faith-based groups, but instead think about tota

community invol venent. She said bringing in a broader group
will ensure nore people will shoulder the load, [thus preventing
bur nout ] .

9: 30: 33 AM

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON said the long-term care study com ng out on
July 20, as well as M. Fuller's upcom ng presentation, wll be
good exanples of all the things that can be done, but she asked
the commttee to renenber that all those things wll have a
cost. She stated, "And |like the personal care attendant debacle

that we went through, we need to be very conscious that whatever
we develop is sustainable.™

9:31: 27 AM
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA responded, "That happened over a course of
about three years, and apparently it was not seen happening."

She asked how that situation can be avoided in the future. She
spoke of applying m ssions and neasures to the budget.

9:32: 02 AM
COMM SSI ONER JACKSON said the departnent currently is working

with the Ofice of Managenent & Budget on m ssions and neasures
related to the next budget.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- July 14, 2006



9:32:14 AM

MR DeWTT said he has to disagree with Representative Ci ssna's

assessnment that "it happened and nobody was watching.” He said
the issue was handed to the present admnistration wthout
havi ng been dealt with and "there was not the political will to
address it." He nmentioned a "fire storm that occurred. He
offered further details, nentioning a change that was nade to
rules related to personal care attendants (PCAs). In response
to a remark from Representative Cissna, he clarified that a
guestion to ask is, "Do we have the political will to nake those

calls and stand up for thenP" Hard choices have to be made and
foll owed, which he said is a tough thing to do in the area of
heal th care.

9:34: 41 AM

CHAIR WLSON warned that the state nust be careful in regard to
giving nore services, "because it's a l|lot easier not to give
them then it is to take them back." Regardi ng the previously
mentioned issue of the PCAs, she said, "There were so many
people getting paid for doing things that they did before for
not hing, and then all at once they found out they could get paid
for it." She said she doesn't want the commttee to start
bl am ng anyone; she just wants to hear the facts.

9:35: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said she has spent a lot of her persona
nmoney traveling around the state and finding out what
adm nistrators are saying about their commnities. She said
that in communities that have been |osing sources of inconme due
to the loss of mning and fishing jobs, for exanple, people have
been getting off of welfare to beconme PCAs. She enphasized the
i nportance of being aware of "the progression” and basing
choi ces on that awareness.

9:36: 28 AM

CHAIR WLSON reiterated that people are doing things now for
nmoney that they did previously for free. She illustrated this
phenonenon through exanples of what 1is happening in her

community. She said, "So, that's one area that we did | ook
at and we did pull back on, and | don't know where we're at with
it now" She asked M. Fuller, "Is it getting contai ned?"

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- July 14, 2006



9:37:31 AM

MR.  FULLER answered that [containnent] is beginning. He
conpared the issue to an out of control gorilla. He i ndi cated
that the departnment will try to anticipate the outcones of any
new prograns or changes, but resources wll be necessary in
order to have people track what is happening. He said the
admnistration within the departnment is "really thin for very
huge prograns,” which he said is a choice.

9:39: 09 AM
COW SSI ONER  JACKSON said the balance has been that t he

departnment cuts internally in order to allow the services to get
out to Al askans.

CHAIR WLSON warned that the departnent nust be careful about
t hat bal ance.

9: 39: 53 AM

CHAIR WLSON turned back to the making of the I|ist. She naned
t he subcat egories under prevention as: birth, chronic disease
mental health, drugs, and alcohol. She nentioned faith-based

comunity incentives.

CHAI R W LSON suggested that the topic of personal responsibility
could be listed under conmunication. In response to a remark
from Representative Cissna that "personal responsibility is
sonething that conmes with know edge,"” she agreed that education
could be the subcategory under conmunication, and then persona

responsibility could be l|isted under education. The subject of
conmuni cation, she said, could be divided into the follow ng

i ndividuals, communities, and legislators. She asked that those
present pick a topic and get back to the group with nore
i nformation.

9:42: 59 AM

CHAIR W LSON asked for feedback regarding the topic of health
and heal th care.

9:43:15 AM
M5. CARR stated, "During our neeting in Denver, we did talk

about access to 'cares,' but through two channel s: ... through
t he insurance channel and through services and facilities.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- July 14, 2006



So, that may be a concept that we keep, because | think there
are two very different sets of strategies that they work through
on that."

9:43: 35 AM

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON suggested that it would be good to focus on
access in cost and quality.

9:44:12 AM

CHAIR WLSON concluded that under the category of health and
health care, the group could consider follow ng subcategories:
access, quality, and cost. Under access, she announced, would
be insurance and services. She reviewed the groupings of
categories thus far.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from 9:45:07 AMto 9:46: 10 AM

9:57:13 AM

CHAIR WLSON, after nmuch input from those present about
possibilities for grouping subjects, announced a tentative
schedul e: 7/26, 8/ 30, 9/27, and 10/ 25.

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adj ourned at 10:02: 50 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- July 14, 2006



